SM-26
(See also: SM-179 &
SM-406)

Yob
S M «26 and 179
POINT LOOKOUT MONUMENTS
Point Lookout State Park 1876 and 1910

The smaller monument (STMA-26) was erected in 1876 by the people
oFf St. Mary's, Charles and Calvert Counties to honor the Confederate
soldiers and sailors who died while prisoners at the Point Lookout Fort

federal prison camp. Its construction was g part of the activity during

the Centennial of the American Revolution.

The larger monument (STMp-179) was erected in 1910 by the federal
government after the remains of the Confederate prisoners had been
ison aunco
.moved to this site from the £¥ site at Point Lookout. The inscribed base
records the names of 3,389 dead and includes the word "Unknown! of uh-ieh-WhpM

there wer= many.
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7. DESCRIPTION - = o
: {Check One)
CONDITION O Excellenr 0] Good  [3 Fair [ Deteriorated [ Ruins [ Unexposed
(Check One) (Check One)
7‘3 Altered ] Unaltered ] Moved '5: Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The site of Point Lookout Civil War prison .and hospital
for Confederates is located in lower St. Mary's County,
Maryland, at the confluence of the Potomac River and the
Chesapeake Bav. Presently a State Park, the archaeological
district is bounded on the north by Tanner Creek, on the
east by the Chesapeake Bay and on the south and west by
the mouth of the Potomac River. The district includes
the site of the prison camp, hospital, fort, and other
associated structures, and the present-day U.S. Coast
Guard lignthouse which dates, in part, prior to the Civil War.

From 1849 to 1938 the Chesapeake Bay shoreline receded
as much as 950 feet. A riprap revetment installed along
the Eastern Shore in 1973 has halted the erosion.., While
the shoreline of the Potomac section of the site has retained
basically the same shave, variation as much as 50 feet
since 1952 has probably resulted in the destruction of
archaeolqgical remains in that area (Kent, 1974: 4). "The
Point has been victimized by severe erosion, sand blows,
and destructive storms over the years to the voint that
the surface of the land reveals little of what existed
during the Civil War or prior to it." (Kent, 1974: 9)

With the mocdernization of the park facilities and the
construction of the riprap revetment, an archaeological
survey was conducted in 1973 to determine the location and
extent of archaeolocical remains. of the Civil War and
pre-Civil War structures and facilitises. A lithograph made
of Point Lookout between 1863-64, provicded essential
information for the location and interpretation of the
arcnaeological remains uncovered. Areas lost to erosion
were surveyed by underwater erchaeologists and found to
contaln no in situ material althouch a more detailed survey
is needed. Wnile erosion has claimed a large porticn of the
site along the eastern shore, significant areas of the
prison complex remain. They include:

At least one half of the large, wheel-

shaped Hammond General Hospital; the guarter-

master's office; stables; various sutlers;

possible the wharf and warehouses close by; the

original licht .house and bucy shed, (still standing);

several hosvital wards to the north cf Hammond

General Hespital; the extrexme western portion of

the Rebel Prison Canmp; the cattle vard; a line

of rifle pits; Fort Lincoln; and, the majority

of the encamcments located along the Potomac shore,

to nare a few.

In addition, the presence of two residences
predating the Civil War are indicated, and

there are likely to be Indian camps close at hand

(Popaes Creek pottery, liiddle Woodland period)

(Kent, 1974: 37).

(See continuation sheet)
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Point Lookout Prison Camp Archaeological Site

7. DESCRIPTION, continued

It is the only remaining standing structure that was
present during the Civil War occupation. The Coast Guard
lichthouse at the extreme southern tip of the peninsula
was constructed in 1830 and remained in continu%l use until
1966. From 1878 to 1948 the lighthouse and surrouncing
area served as a Coast Guard station. The lighthouse
is a two-story frame residence with a hip roof. The ligat
is located at the apex of the roof. An engraving of the
area as a Civil War prison camp indicates that the 11g“9
rested on a much taller base eqguivilent in height to the
two story residence. The light has not been in service
since 1966.

The first major Civil War structure erected at the
Point was the Hammcnd General Hospital which extencded ncrth-
ward Ircom the lighthouse and encompassed the southern
portion of the Point from the shores of the Potomac to t
beaches of the Chesapeake. The hospital rested on wooden
posts driven into the soft sands of the Point. While ©o
moulds and nail alignments have been reported from this
area, the exact position of the hospital has not been
determined. The plans for the hospital, which judging
the 1863-4 lithograph were faithfullv executed, called
a hospital:

which consisted of a series of buildings forming

a circle, twentv in all, arranged like the spckes
in a wheel. The buildincs 1ﬂclu“ed fifteen wards,
175 by 25, and one building 175 by 50, used as the
headguarters for the doctors, for linen, and

other stores. These sixteen buildings were connected
by a circular roofed corridor eicat feet wide, and
one hundred one feet in circumference. The spac
between each two oif these buildings was thrity-six
feet; and in the angle of the circular scace,

four buildincs, each 77 by 25 were erected: (c)
the Charel, (&) the Half-Diet Xitchen, (e) the
Library and Reading Room, and (£) the Knapsack

and Baggade Room. A 20,000 gallon water tank

was providad to flood the hospital in case of fire
(Beitzell, 1972: 19).

The cottaces, hotel, and other structures dating before
the Civil war occuvation when the Point was a fashionable
resort and batiing place were converted into hospitals with
the excepticn of those occunied by surgeons, the officers cof

P

(Sce continuation sheet No. 2) Gpo 221.704
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Point Lookout Prison Camop Archaeological Site

7. DESCRIPTION, continued

the militarv devartment, the sisters of charity and others
(Beitzell, 1972: 103). The 1863 lithograph reveals the
multitude cf buildings within thes military-hospital complex:
bakeries, ccmmissary, laundry, guard house, post office,
boarding hcuse, sutler's house, general store, hospital
wards, warehouses, and wharfs. Investigations of this
rich arcn;:ologlcal area have been limited to a surface
survey with a metal detector which did not orochce meaningful
results. Imgposting the present shcocre line over the shore
line depicted in the 1863 lithocraoh rouchly indicates
that the area east of the "Gazette 0ffice" and Guard

quarters may have been lost to erosion (see enclosed
lithograrh, Building No. 20). This area would inclucde the

comnandexr's headcua rte*s anc various administrative oifilces
along the 3ay shore (Lithograrh, 1863: No. 31-42).

The biacksmith shop - stables - contraband cuarters
complex has been pinvointed north of the present parking
lot and south of the former prison comepcund by the recover
of hand wxr 1t spikes, horseshoes and an eagle union
button (n%i , 1974: 19). Aerial phctcgrarhs show the
location of the cattle yard and the road network. On ground
investicaticns have been Llnited in this area to surface
collectinc a a metal detector survey.
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On the Potomac shore of the peninsula northwest of
the prison comround are the above ground remains of Fort
Lincoln, erected sometime between 1863-4 in reaction to
rumors oI an impencding Coniecerate attemot to free the
prisorers. The urcent prervcaraticn of defensive wWOrks re-
ferred to in the literature may he do by the discovery

(See continuation sheet No. 3) GPO 921.704
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7. DESCRIPTION, continued

of the remains of a possible building which was apparently
burnt down instead of torn down in preparation for the
fort's erection. This feature was uncovered by bulldozers
preparing for the placement of a riprap revetment along the
fort's western wall. The fort is sguare in plan with earthern
parapets forming a walkway around the verimeter. Three of the
corners are rounded and extend beyond the sguare perimeter.
The fourth corner has been eroded away as has been the western
wall. These corner protrusions are probably gun emplacements.
The outer wall slopes down to a moat or ditch which surrounds
the fort._ The interior walls were possibly reinforced by
wooden posts. A depression of the south wall marks the entrance
(Kent: 1974: 12).
The union re
along the southe
to the Chesapezak
lost to the Bav, t
features connected
in the area north ©
a

iments were stationed at the Point camped
ores orf Lake Cocnoy Irom the Potecmac

res. While the eastern camps have been
Vesbern area has produced archaeological

O..;

(D H

Fort Lincoln revealed a double oven

si
h
e
with daily camp activities. Excavation
R
[
=

used in the prevaration cf focd and rossibly bullets. Other

areas north of the Fort have producesd suriace finds of numerous

minie balls, musiiet balls, poorly formed varieties of minie

balls, and lead spews all indicative of bullet making activities|

Kent speculates cf the basis of this data that each company f

was resconsible for the manufacture oif 1its own bullets (1974: 2¢
lelLEd testing of two residential sites located south

of Lake Conoy produced debris of the eighteenth and nineteenth

centuryv. I*on stcne, pearlware, brown salt-glazed stoneware,

blue and ¢reen shell-edces oaarlnave and brown coxide ccrmbed

vellow slipware was found. he presence oi brown salt-glazed

stoneware is scmewhat indicative of a late seventeenth and

early eichteenth tury component at the site.” (Kent, 1974:30)

+Q
W0

0]
o)
SHEQ BN SN AN (Ve B oY

The re51cvnce on scutheast shore oi Lake Conoy produced

l

similar artifact t of a larger size suggesting that the
area has escapec cultivation. The residences were probably
of low or middle inccme status. '

The small cox hosrital on the north side of Lake Conoy
and the Union soldiers burial ground north of the present
primitive camp &rea have not been located. The Confederate
"Grave Y&rd No. 1" north of the priscn camp area may be

represented by an alignment of depressions (XKent, 1974: 18).

GPO 821.724
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8. SIGNIFICANCE, continued

of the Civil War occupation. One of the earliest commercial
resorts in Marylan& the Point's recreational assets were

Point Lookout Prison Camon Archaeological Site

recognized in 1857 by William C. Johnson who led the develoo-
ment of a hotel and over one hundred summer cottages
(Beitzell, 1972: 3, 19).

Beginning in July of 1862, the pleasant atmosphere of the
Point was replaced by the serious task of preparing facilities
for the Civil War wounded. The wheel shaped Hammond Ceneral
Hospital was completed by August of 1862 at which time

350 Federal wounded became the first patients. The hospitel

also

Gettysburg, the 8,000 to 10,000 Confecerates injured at the
battle necessitated the conversion of the Point into a prisioner
of war depot as well as a hospital. Constructed to house a

peak population of 10,000 priscners, the camp surpassdd =~

that ficgure in 1864. The two separate enclosures housing the
officers and enlisted men were later used to house enlisted men
when the officers were transierred to other camps to prevent
escapes. The prlsozﬁrs lived in cloth tents; recuisiticns

for woocden barracks bpbeinc denied by the Secretary of War whose
policy was to treat the Confederate prisoners in a similar

manner to that received by Union priscners in Confederate

camps

means and cavacities to rectiiy the devnlorable prison condit
but the eve for an eye policy of the Federal bureaucrats wa
ultim
which amounted to at least 3,455 Ccnfederate deaths at Pceint

Lookout (Beitzell, 1972). This 1s a conservative estimate X
according thv Beitzell who feels that an ultimate toll of over
4,000 deaths may soms cayv be realized.

While ctarded by the battle-testaed 2nd and 12th recinments,
New Hampshire Volunteers, the priscners received fair treatment.
But with the arrival of draftiees and Negro troops, the plicht
of the vrisconers worsened as 38 or more prisoners were shot wizh
out cause and thi2 guards responsibie not brought to terms.
Humanitarian eZiorts by lccal residents nd southexn officials
were constantlyv, frustrated by the Federal government.

With increasing numbers of prisoners, suvolies, facilities,
and water were in short supply resulting in an increased
death rate. Arprouinmatelv 1,532 rrisconers died during the
last seven rmonths of the prisons use. "By July 5, 1865, all
the prisoners had been released excect a few in the hospital:
ancd on July 13, Foint Looxout was cofficially discontinued
as a garrison post..."(Beitzell, 1972: 41).

accepted some Confederate wounded. After the Battle of

. Unlike tne Confederates, the Union ozf1c1als had tn

ate cause oi the high death rate at Federal prisons

: . 1 . 21.72
(Sce continuaticn shoct No. 5) GPoO 9z1-e
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Point Lockout Prison Camp Archaeological Site

8. SIGNIFICANCE, continued

In 1866 the Federal Government took steps to dismantle
the prison camp and establish a National Cemetery. The
camp was subseq uently dismantled and the remains of the
dead rerove r relocated. In toe twentieth century the
area reverted backx to recreational use which continued
after the land was purchased by the State of Marvland in 1962.
Since that time the State has been developing the recreational
potential of the site but has until recently ignored the
historical valu=s, The State has taken measures to inventory
the historiczl ressources, to checik the erosion, and to prevent
casual digging ZIfor relics by informed members oi the public
The rich archacolcgical and nistorical resources of the district
are only beginning to be recognized.

GPO 921.724
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(Chéck One)
CONDITION
Excellent E Good [] Fair [ Deteriorated [ ] Ruins [ Unexposed [ ]

(Check One) (Check One)

INTEGRITY Altered [} Unaltered t} Moved (7] Original Site ﬁ

-

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Point Lookout is a narrow flat area at the extreme ‘i
southernmost tip of St. Mary's County, at the junction
of the Potomaec River and the Chesaveake Bay. It is-almost—
surrounded by tidal water*iiuui_is-qne—e&?ﬂﬁﬁrﬁﬁes%—boau%i£u1

i 1 . S Acdes -

It is the site of the 500 acre Point Lookout Maryland
State Park, which includes the Civil War fort known as
Fort Lincoln. Excavations show the outline of the fort,
which covers avpproximately one acre,

The Federal monument to the Confederate prisoners

who died at P Lookout Prison is adjacent to the state |
ngézk‘j%% is the only monumen ected by the Federal
g;ﬂ overnment to Confederate soldiers. It is still maintained

by the Federal Government.
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PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
Pre-Columbian [] 16th Century [} 18th Century [] 20th Century [
15th Century O 17th Century X 19th Century X

SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known)

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Political

Religion/Phi-
losophy

Abor iginal Education Urban Planning O

Other (Specity) O

Prehistoric Engineering

Historic Industry

Agriculture Invention Science

Art

Landscape Sculpture

Commerce Architecture Social/Human-

Communications Literature itarian

oooooMo

Conservation Military Theater

O¥RDO D00
000 0oOOo O

Music Transportation

fﬁ?
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)

NSTRUCTIONS

S E ;//f/

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (Include Personages, Dates, Events, Etc.)

Near the outbreak of the Civil War the Federal
Government built Hammond General Hospital at Point Lookout
for Union Soldiers. After the battle of Gettysburg it
became a pnrison for Confederate soldiers. By the end of
the war there were over 20,000 orisoners at the Point,
~——The famous writer Sydney Lanier was one of the orisoners,

Conditions were so bad and the orisoners were so
mistreated that 27% of them died. This compares with the
2L% mortality rate at the famous Confederate Andersonville
Prison in Georgia.

After the war the orisoners were set free and had to
walk home from Point Lookout. Many of them passed through
Leonardtown, the County Seat of St., Mary's County, and
were aided by the citizens.

Many of the bodies of thé orisoners who died were
moved to their former homes in the South by their families.
Those that remain are marked by the Federal monument, o’

A bronze plaque oa—whiech states simply:

"irected by the United States to mark the burial nlace
of Confederate soldiers and sailors who died at Point
Lookout Maryland while prisoners of war and were buried
to the number of 3384, but whose remains were subsequently
removed either to their resvective homes, or to this
cemetery where the individual graess cannot be identified.”
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Chronicles of St, Mary's - a monthly oublication of the
St. Mary's Historical Society

Yesterday In 0l1d St., Mary's County - By Robert Z. T. Pogue
Georgetown University Archives, St. Mary's Beacon Files/\s'ia rRe N
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ORGANIZATION DATE -
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STREET AND NUMBER: (@]
z
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Bushwood | Maryland 20618 /T
12. 'STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION ', i ;g NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na- ) . o ]
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law I hereby certify that this property is included in the

89-665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion National Register.
in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set

forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
or y the 7a Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation

level of significance of this nomination is:

National [} State [ ] Local (O
Date
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Keeper of The National Register
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